
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

May 13, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Meeting 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

Mayor Marnie Mendoza  Mayor Pro Tem Sean Lomen 

Councilmembers  Kim Douglass  Trinity Burruss  Joe Fatula 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

May 13, 2020 

Closed Session:  5:00PM 

Regular Session:  6:00PM 

The open session will be performed via TELECONFERENCE 

Join via ZOOM on a computer or mobile device by visiting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86329906707 

Dial in by calling one of the numbers listed below and enter the Webinar ID: 863 2990 6707 

1 (669) 900-6833   1 (346) 248-7799   1 (312) 626-6799 

1 (929) 205-6099  1 (253) 215-8782   1 (301) 715-8592 

Or join via Facebook Live on our City of Colfax page: City of Colfax California 

1 CLOSED SESSION 

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

1D. Closed Session 

a) Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6. City's

designated representatives: City Manager Wes Heathcock and Labor Consultant Dennis

Batchelder. Employee organization: General unit employees represented by IUOE, Stationary

Engineers, Local 39.

b) Conference with legal counsel regarding existing litigation pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956.9(d)(1): Before the Board of Administration of the California Public Employees

Retirement System (CalPERS) - In the Matter of the Appeal Regarding Membership

Determination of Laurie Van Groningen and City of Colfax, Respondents, California Office of

Administrative Hearings Case No. 2019050352, CalPERS Case No. 2018-1286.

*** NOTE: Public Comment for Closed Session items will be taken via email and must be 

received no later than 24 hours prior to the Closed Session meeting date and time. Please 

submit Closed Session Public Comments to city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov *** 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86329906707
mailto:city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

May 13, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

2C. Roll Call 

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

Recommended Action:  By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

3 AGENCY REPORTS 

3A. Placer County Sheriff 

4 PRESENTATION   (NO PRESENTATION) 

5 PUBLIC HEARING   (NO PUBLIC HEARING) 

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item 

pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

6A. 

6B. 

6C. 

6D. 

6E. 

Minutes ï Special Meeting Workshop of April 1, 2020   (Pages 4-6) 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting Workshop of April 1, 2020 

Minutes ï Regular Meeting of April 22, 2020   (Pages 7-10) 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 22, 2020 

FY 2020/2021 SB1 Funding Project List   (Pages 11-14) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 adopting a list of potential projects to be funded in 

full or in part by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act, ensuring eligibility for State of 

California Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) revenues. 

Inland Business Systems Copier Agreement   (Pages 15-25) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 60-

month agreement with Inland Business Systems for Xerox copier services not to exceed $25,000. 

Contract Award for Kneeland Street Underground Drainage Improvements   (Pages 26-29) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to award a 

construction contract to Koslin Construction Incorporated in the amount of $86,225 and authorize 

the City Manager to execute change orders up to $8,623 for a not to exceed amount of $94,848. 

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action

Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent 

council agenda and posting of that agenda will serve as notice. 



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

May 13, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 

I, Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  
at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov. 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 

committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 

Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 

meeting agenda. 

8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ï All Councilmembers

8B. City Operations Update ï City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

9A. 

9B. 

Potential Traffic Control Measures ï S. Foresthill St. Area   (Pages 30-61) 

Recommendation: Approve a report outlining potential traffic control measures for an area of 

the City centered around S. Foresthill St. 

PG&E Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement   (Pages 62-70) 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a Public Safety Power Shutoff sublet agreement for 7 North Main Street. 

10 GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Informal statements, observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by council members 

under this agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 

11 ADJOURNMENT 

________________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 

limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered 

to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 



City Council Minutes 
Special Workshop Meeting of Wednesday, April 1, 2020 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mayor Mendoza started the Special Workshop Meeting at 9:16AM. 

Roll Call: 

Present: Mendoza, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

Absent: Lomen 

1A. Open Public Comment 

Mayor Mendoza opened public comment. 

No public comment. 

Public comment closed. 

2 WORKSHOP 

2A. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application Workshop 

Action: Receive presentation, discuss, and direct staff. 

City Manager Heathcock provided background information. 

Lorie Adams with Adams Ashby Group Inc., CDBG Application Consultant, provided information about 

Colfax’s eligibility as well as Adams Ashby Group Inc. She explained what CDBG is and funding 

application. Ms. Adams spoke about the projects CDBG can enhance and how to plan out for the next 

funding cycle.  

Councilmember Burruss provided what the acronym CDBG stands for, Community Development Block 

Grant. 

Ms. Adams talked about past funding limiting to a certain dollar amount, and have increased amount to 

$3.5 million. She provided information about Economic Development Over the Counter projects up to 5 

million, working with a specific business and how the funds can be used. Ms. Adams discussed funding 

opportunities, types of projects the City can apply for, and requirements for projects as well as timelines. 

She explained the housing program funding options, economic development program funding options, 

micro-enterprise program funding options, and infrastructure program funding options. Ms. Adams 

explained funding limitations and projects/activities limitations. 

Mayor Mendoza requested Ms. Adams explain Shovel Ready projects, Ready to Bid projects. 

Ms. Adams explained the difference between the different project types. She explained how application 

process has changed, new process for issuing contracts, new technology, and implementation. 

Item 6A

4



Councilmember Burruss addressed a comment from Travis Berry inquiring about the point system for 

CDBG. 

Ms. Adams provided information about the point system and the City’s recent project on Culver Street. 

City Manager Heathcock provided information on projects the City is recommending, roads in need of 

repair that would qualify for over the counter CDBG funding.  

Ms. Adams provided clarification that facilities and improvements must be in mostly residential areas, 

which the proposed street projects are in. 

City Manager Heathcock provided an explanation of the timeline we are working with. 

Mayor Mendoza requested the public submit comments. 

Councilmember Burruss suggested to receive comments from council while the public submits their 

comments. 

Councilmember Fatula suggested installing Christmas tree lights from the freeway to downtown and 

putting power to the light pole at the center of Main Street. He talked about the benefits of adding these 

features. 

Councilmember Burruss commented about next year’s application, supported this year’s application being 

focused on the roads. 

Ms. Adams requested Councilmember Burruss mention future application topics. 

Councilmember Burruss mentioned the old hotel in downtown, a public swimming pool and if the high 

school could be brought in. 

Councilmember Burruss address  a comment from Travis Berry who inquired whether or not Ms. 

Adams feels the proposed road projects would score high enough to go through. 

Ms. Adams confirmed that with the new process, our road projects are well supported. 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed Councilmember Douglass is participating in the meeting. 

Councilmember Douglass confirmed his bases for comment have been covered. 

Ms. Adams provided information on how our proposed road projects are supported and talked about 

mitigations, procurement, and post award timelines, as well as milestone enforcement. She talked about 

reimbursable funds and their timeline. 

Councilmember Burruss provided public comment from Leann Nelson who inquired about including 

County of Placer housing rehab in the CDBG application. 

Ms. Adams inquired about the City’s participation in housing rehab in the past. 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed one business loan is being paid back but all others are paid off. 

Ms. Adams provided information about housing rehab requirements and what order is suggested for 

projects. She mentioned updates for elderly, and funding limitations, and talked about HOME resource. 

Item 6A

5



Councilmember Burruss inquired about administrative costs being covered in the grant funding. 

Ms. Adams confirmed the different components the funding covers, including admin, design, planning 

and more. She clarified housing rehab limitations of funding components. 

Councilmember Burruss provided public comment from Leann Nelson who inquired about grant options 

for seniors. 

Ms. Adams responded by explaining different programs available for seniors. 

Councilmember Burruss talked about preparing for additional funding required to implement the 

programs. 

Ms. Adams talked about analyzing funding, inquired about non-profits on the line and if there were any 

comments from those groups. 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed outreach was done but no comments were received. 

Councilmember Burruss mentioned the skatepark project and mentioned the project history. 

Ms. Adams confirmed the skatepark could potentially be part of a planning grant. She talked about non-

profit organizations needing to meet with significant lead time due to application requirements.  

Mayor Mendoza requested council confirm a direction for staff. 

City Manager Heathcock requested council provide additional feedback. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula and seconded Councilmember Douglass and approved by the 

following roll call vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: Lomen 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed the Public Hearing on this item will be at the April 22nd Regular 

Colfax City Council meeting. 

3 ADJOURNMENT 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Mendoza adjourned the meeting, without 

objection at 10:16AM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 13th day of May, 2020. 

_______________________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Item 6A



City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, April 22, 2020 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 CLOSED SESSION (NO CLOSED SESSION) 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

Mayor Mendoza called the open session to order at 6:05PM 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

City Manager Heathcock led the Pledge of Allegiance 

2C. Roll Call 

Present: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

Absent:  

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 

Recommendation: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded Mayor Pro Tem Lomen and approved by the 

following roll call vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

3 AGENCY REPORTS 

3A. Placer County Sheriff – Ty Conners provided an update. 

4 PRESENTATION (NO PRESENTATION) 

5 PUBLIC HEARING 

5A. State Community Development Block Grant Application 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss and considering authorizing the following: 

1) Open the public hearing and receive public comment regarding the Community Development

Block Grant (CDBG) program and possible activities and projects to be considered for funding

under the upcoming Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) process; Review discussion from

workshop meeting held on April 1, 2020.

2) Direct staff to prepare for Council consideration a CDBG application requesting up to

$3,500,000 for Road Rehabilitation Project; and

3) Schedule the application approval at a future Council meeting

Item 6B

7





MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Councilmember Fatula to approve Item 6D 

on the Consent Calendar and approved by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

9A 

9B 

9C 

Annual Housing Element Progress Report 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 18-2020 accepting the update on the 2019 

Annual Housing Element Progress Report and authorize staff to send the report to the State. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Fatula, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen and approved by the 

following roll call vote: 

AYES:  Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 

Staff Presentation: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen and seconded by Councilmember Burruss and approved by 

the following roll call vote: 

AYES:  Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

COVID-19 Economic Loss Compensation Request Letter 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss the draft letter requesting compensation for COVID-19 economic loss 

and direct staff accordingly. 

Item 9C did not receive a motion by Council. 

10 GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Item 6B









__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Colfax                                                                                      SB 1 Funding Project List 

Resolution __-2020   

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __-2020 
 

ADOPTING A LIST OF POTENTIAL PROJECTS TO BE FUNDED IN FULL OR IN PART 

BY SB 1, THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT, ENSURING ELIGIBILITY 

FOR STATE OF CALIFORNIA ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION 

ACCOUNT (RMRA) REVENUES 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 was passed by the State 

Legislature and signed into law by the Governor on April 2017 to address the significant multi-modal 

transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and, 

 

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the residents of the City 

of Colfax are aware of the projects proposed for funding and which projects have been completed each fiscal 

year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax must adopt a list by resolution of all projects proposed to receive funding from 

the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which must include a description 

and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated 

useful life of the improvement; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax, will receive an estimated $39,152 in RMRA funding in FY 2020-21 from     

SB 1; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax adopted its City of Colfax 2018 Pavement Management Plan and used said 

Pavement Management Plan to develop the SB 1 project list to SB 1 funds are being used on the highest-

priority projects and in the most cost-effective way; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City of Colfax maintain and/or rehabilitate street/roads within 

the City of Colfax this year and similar projects into the future. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax affirms the foregoing 

recitals are true and correct. The City of Colfax hereby adopts the following list of projects to be funded in part 

or solely with fiscal year 2020-21 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues. 

 

 

 Culver Street Reconstruction (Phase III) 

o Description: Street reconstruction. The project is estimated at $220,000. The project is 

intended to provide a new roadway surface to improve traffic flow and the quality of the 

roadway. 

o Location: Culver Street from Church Street to W. Grass Valley Street.  

o Estimated Useful Life of Project: 20 years. 

o Estimated Year of Construction: 2021 

 

 

 

13





  

City of Colfax Inland Business Systems Copier Agreement 

Staff Report May 13, 2020 

  

     

Staff Report to City Council 
 

FOR THE MAY 13, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Inland Business Systems Copier Agreement 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded:  ã Un-funded: Amount: $25,000   Fund(s): 100  

 

Summary/Background 

The City of Colfax is currently in an agreement with Inland Business Systems (Inland) for copier services. The 

agreement does not provide for government prices, therefore, staff solicited quotes from three copier services, 

Inland, Buckmaster, and Wizix to find the best copier pricing.  

 

The City received cost proposals from Inland, Buckmaster, and Wizix with Inland providing varying term 

periods. Inland proposal supported the greatest savings at the 60-month term between the three companies (see 

table below). Inland new pricing terms will result in a $16,726 saving in comparison of the current Inland 

contract for the 60-month term.  

 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 60-

month agreement with Inland Business Systems for Xerox copier services not to exceed $25,000.   

15





_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Colfax Inland Business Systems Copier Agreement 

Resolution __-2020 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution ̄  __-2020 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 60-MONTH AGREEMENT 

WITH INLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS FOR XEROX COPIER SERVICES NOT TO 

EXCEED $25,000 

WHEREAS, The City of Colfax is currently in an agreement with Inland Business Systems (Inland) for 

copier services that is not at the government rate; and, 

WHEREAS, staff solicited quotes from three copier services, Inland Business Systems, Buckmaster, 

and Wizix to find the best copier pricing; and, 

WHEREAS, Inland proposal supported the greatest savings at the 60-month term between the three 

companies; and, 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending council authorize the City Manager to enter into a 60-month 

agreement with Inland Business Systems for Xerox copier services. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax the City Manager to 

enter into a 60-month agreement with Inland Business Systems for Xerox copier services not to exceed $25,000. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th of May 2020 by the following vote 

of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

    Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

17



Attachment 2



 

Attachment 2

19





 

 

Attachment 2

21



 

Attachment 2



 

 

Attachment 2





 

Attachment 2





_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Colfax Contract Award for Kneeland Street Underground Drainage 

Improvement Resolution __-2020 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № __-2020 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

TO KOSLIN CONSTRUCTION INCORPORATED IN THE AMOUNT OF $86,225 AND 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDERS UP TO $8,623 

FOR A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $94,848. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to construct certain underground drainage improvements at the 

intersection of Kneeland Street and Grass Valley Highway; and, 

WHEREAS, Koslin Construction Incorporated will be constructing drainage improvements for the 

Shadow Wood subdivision in the immediate vicinity of the intersection of Kneeland Street with Grass Valley 

Highway; and, 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to take advantage of an economy of scale by utilizing Koslin Construction 

Incorporated to construct the underground drainage improvements desired by the City; and, 

WHEREAS, Koslin Construction Incorporated has submitted a Cost Proposal which is acceptable to the 

City staff. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax, authorizes the City 

Manager to award a construction contract to Koslin Construction Incorporated in the amount of $86,225.00 and 

authorizes the City Manager to execute change orders to a maximum of $8,623.00 for a not to exceed amount of 

$94,848. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th of May 2020 by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

    Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 



oslin 
onstruction 

;,....;;� Incorporated 
L...�r/ RO. Box214727

9S821 

Larry Wing 
City of Colfax - City Engineer 
33 South Main Street 
Colfax, CA. 95713 

Re: -Offsite Work Improvements 
-Shadow Wood Subdivision

Mr. Wing, 

May 01, 2020 

As we discussed on Wednesday, April 29, 2020 please see the following revised 
breakdown of costs for some of the offsite improvements including work on Mr. 
Mcglaiughin property, in refence to the above Project. 

01) Potholing existing utilities
02) Delivery of concrete materials
03) Traffic control system
04) Traffic control plan
05) Strom drain manholes
06) Strom drain inlets in curb
07) Strom drain inlet (Mcglaiughin)
08) Fifteen (15") RCP (34 If+ 6 If)
(Including traffic control personnel, 

1 LS @ 
1 LS@$ 
1 LS @ $ 
I LS @ $ 
1 EA@$ 
3 EA@$ 
1 EA@$ 

40 LF@ $ 

bedding, piping, initial back fill, concrete cap as 
indicated temporary steel plates and temporary 
asphalt.) 
09) Twelve (12") RCP (?)(Planter area)
10) Twelve (12") HDPE (Mcglaiughin)
11) Connect to exiting system (Mcglaiughin)
12) Remove drainage inlet
13) Reconstruct drainage inlet (Planter)

30 LF@ $ 
20 LF @ $ 

1 EA@$ 
1 EA@$ 
1 EA@$ 

14) Removal of concrete and asphalt as
necessary. (No replacement) (Approximately
150 sf. asphalt & 40 If of curb) 1 LS 

15) Adjustment for Prevailing Wage 1 LS 
@$ 
@$ 

4,500.00 = $ 
4,300.00 = 
4,000.00 = $ 
1,000.00 = $ 
9,500.00 = $ 
7,000.00 = $ 
5,000.00 = $ 

325.00 = $ 

225.00 = $ 
70.00 = $ 

1,400.00 = $ 
1,500.00 = 
4,000.00 = $ 

4,500.00 
4,300.00 
4,000.00 
1,000.00 
9,500.00 

21,000.00 
5,000.00 

13,000.00 

6,750.00 
1,400.00 
1,400.00 
1,500.00 
4,000.00 

4,000.00 = $ 4,000.00 
4,875.00 = $ 4,875.00 

Total = $ 86,225.00 

Phone (916) 481-8428 Fax (916) 481-8429 





City of Colfax     Potential Traffic Control Measures – S. Foresthill St. Area 

Staff Report May 13, 2020 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE MAY 13, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Larry Wing, City Engineer 

Subject: Potential Traffic Control Measures – S. Foresthill St. Area 
  Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

Some time ago Council Member Fatula submitted a request asking that there be a review of a possible need for 

additional traffic control measures for the intersection of S. Forest Hill St. with E. Church St.  The City 

Manager conferred with the City Engineer and it was determined that it would be more appropriate to conduct a 

more comprehensive review of the need for additional traffic control within the entire neighborhood bounded 

by Depot St to the north, S. Auburn St. to the west, and SR 174 on the south and east. 

Upon the City Manager’s direction, the City Engineer commenced the study using primarily a registered traffic 

engineer from his GHD Inc. office.  The primary measures to provide traffic control at intersections range from 

rules of the road in low volume locations (vehicles on the right have the right-of-way), to more passive controls 

such as Yield signs when the assignment of operational priority is required infrequently, and then to STOP signs 

where traffic volumes and intersection conflicts could become more prevalent.  Active controls, usually traffic 

signals, are needed when directional traffic movement assignment is required.  Active measures are usually 

determined through the use of “warrants” which identify minimum conditions prior to installation. 

Neighborhood Evaluation 

The neighborhood under this review is illustrated in the graphic below: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve a report outlining potential traffic control measures for an area of 

the City centered around S. Foresthill St. 

Item 9A

30







Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill Corridor

Depot to SR 174

Attachment 1



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill and Depot

Attachment 1 Item 9A



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill and Marvin

Attachment 1 Item 9A







Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Church and Forest Hill

Attachment 1 Item 9A

38





Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Oak and Forest Hill

Attachment 1 Item 9A

40



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill and SR 174

Attachment 1 Item 9A









Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

North Star and Marvin

Attachment 1 Item 9A

45



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

North Star - Oak ς SR 174

Attachment 1 Item 9A







Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Study Neighborhood
Traffic Accident History

We Checked Two (2) Accident Record Systems
• SWITRS (Statewide Integrated Traffic Record System

2013 ς 2018, and
• TIMS Accident Record System (Injury and Fatal

Accidents Injury and Fatal Accidents 2013 - 2018

Attachment 1 Item 9A







Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Recommended Installations

Attachment 1







Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill @ Oak NB 

Attachment 1 Item 9A

55





Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill @ Church NB 

Attachment 1 Item 9A

57



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill @ Church SB 

Attachment 1 Item 9A





Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Forest Hill @ SR 174 SB

Attachment 1 Item 9A

60



Neighborhood Traffic Control Review

Vista @ SR 174

Attachment 1 Item 9A



City of Colfax PG&E Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement 

Staff Report May 13, 2020 

Staff Report to City Council 

FOR THE MAY 13, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: PG&E Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement 
  Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

The City of Colfax experienced extended power interruption from the PG&E Public Safety Power Shutoff 

(PSPS) during the fall of 2019. The duration of power interruption extended intermittently during the month of 

October. PG&E has stated PSPS events are an ongoing reality for an undetermined amount of time. In response 

to the PSPS events, PG&E is proposing to place Customer Resource Center (CRC) in key locations to provide 

residents with a location with charging and resource connections.  

The City entered into a temporary agreement in October 2019 for the CRC center that was placed at 7 North 

Main Street during the Fall 2019 PSPS events. The CRC center had minimal impacts to City property with no 

demand on labor resources.  

In preparation for the 2020 PSPS season, staff and PG&E have developed a PSPS CRC Agreement for 7 North 

Main Street (Attachment 2) for council consideration. The Agreement term expires in 2025 or within 90-days of 

notification from the City.  

Staff considers this is an intermediate step in providing a long-term solution to the PSPS events. The ultimate 

goal is to develop a resiliency zone that would allow the community to maintain power during the PSPS events. 

There is no estimated time to create a communitywide resiliency zone at this time.  

Fiscal Impacts 

N/A 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2020

2. PG&E CRC Sublet Agreement

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a Public Safety Power Shutoff sublet agreement for 7 North Main Street. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City of Colfax PG&E Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement 

Resolution __-2020 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution ̄  __-2020 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PUBLIC SAFETY POWER 

SHUTOFF SUBLET AGREEMENT FOR 7 NORTH MAIN STREET 

WHEREAS, The City of Colfax experienced extended power interruption from the PG&E Public 

Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) during the fall of 2019; and, 

WHEREAS, PG&E has stated PSPS events are an ongoing reality for an undetermined amount of time; 

and, 

WHEREAS, PG&E is proposing to place Customer Resource Center (CRC) in key locations to provide 

residents with a location with charging and resource connections; and, 

WHEREAS, staff and PG&E have developed the PSPS CRC Agreement for 7 North Main Street for 

council approval. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the City 

Manager to enter into a Public Safety Power Shutoff sublet agreement for 7 North Main Street. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th of May 2020 by the following vote 

of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

    Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

63



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 1 of 4 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(PUBLIC SAFETY POWER SHUTOFF) 

This License Agreement ("License Agreement") is made and entered into this 14th day 
of May, 2020 (the "Effective Date") by the City of Colfax, hereinafter called "LICENSOR," 
and PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California corporation, hereinafter called 
"PG&E."  

R E C I T A L S: 

A. LICENSOR owns or leases that certain real property commonly known as Freight
Depot, located at 7 North Main Street, Assessor's Parcel Number 006-071-007-000, hereinafter 
called the "Property," located in the City of Colfax, County of Placer, State of California. 

B. PG&E desires to partner with LICENSOR in connection with a Public Safety
Power Shutoff Event ("PSPS Event") as defined in Section 3 below. 

C. The parties desire to memorialize this mutual understanding and agreement for
making the Property available to PG&E in connection with a PSPS Event. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, LICENSOR and PG&E agree 
as follows: 

1. License Area.  The real property that is the subject of this License Agreement is
described in EXHIBIT A (the "License Area"). 

2. Grant of License.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this License
Agreement, LICENSOR grants PG&E, PG&E's Representatives, and PG&E's customers, the 
right to use the License Area in connection with a PSPS Event, together with rights of ingress 
and egress to and from the License Area.  PG&E shall give LICENSOR at least 24 hours' prior 
notice of the date and time that PG&E needs to access and use the License Area.  If the License 
Area is not available for access and use by PG&E on the date and time specified in PG&E's 
notice, LICENSOR must so notify PG&E  within 8 hours after receipt of PG&E's notice.   

3. Use.  PG&E and its employees, contractors, agents, and representatives
("PG&E's Representatives") may enter the License Area for purposes of establishing and 
operating a customer resource center in the case of a PSPS Event, as well as establishing and 
operating a staging area to support the command, control, and coordination of any patrol, 
inspection, and restoration of electric facilities in case of a PSPS Event ("PG&E's Activities").  
LICENSOR acknowledges that PG&E's Activities may include the following:  setting up tents 
with tables and seating where PG&E customers can obtain water and snacks, charge phones, and 
get up-to-date information on outages; installing trailers, portable toilets, portable back-up 
generators, and fencing; parking mobile vehicle units and other vehicles; and staging equipment, 
supplies and materials.  For purposes of this License Agreement, a "PSPS Event" means the 
existence of one or more environmental conditions creating extreme fire danger that results in the 
shutoff of power for public safety.  Examples of PSPS Events include red flag warnings issued 
by the United States National Weather Service, low humidity levels, high winds, and dry 
vegetation. 

Item 9B



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 2 of 4 

4. Term.  This License Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years, commencing
on , 2020 and expiring , 2025.  The license granted herein shall be revocable at the 
option of either LICENSOR or PG&E, provided that the revoking party provides at least  ninety 
(90) days' written notice of the revocation to the other party.  Notwithstanding the term of this
License Agreement, PG&E anticipates that it will use the License Area on an occasional basis, if
at all, for periods of two (2) to ten (10) days at a time.  The days (including any partial days)
during which any of PG&E's Activities are occurring in or on the License Area are referred to
herein as "Use Days."  During Use Days, PG&E shall have the exclusive right to use the License
Area twenty-four (24) hours per day.

5. Use of License Area.

(a) As Is.  To LICENSOR'S current actual knowledge, the Property complies
with all laws, including the Americans with Disabilities Act and other accessibility laws.  PG&E 
accepts the License Area "AS-IS," "WHERE-IS" and "WITH ALL-FAULTS," subject to all 
applicable zoning, municipal, county and state laws, ordinances, and regulations governing and 
regulating the use of the License Area.  PG&E may request LICENSOR to perform alterations, 
repairs, or improvements to the License Area, but PG&E understands and agrees that 
LICENSOR shall not be obligated to make any such alterations, repairs or improvements at any 
time. 

(b) Restoration.  PG&E shall exercise reasonable care in the conduct of
PG&E's Activities in the License Area.  Upon PG&E's ceasing to use the License Area in 
connection with a particular PSPS Event, PG&E shall remove all vehicles and personal property 
of PG&E and PG&E's Representatives, remove all debris and waste material resulting from 
PG&E's Activities, and repair and restore the License Area as nearly as possible to the condition 
that existed prior to PG&E's entry hereunder within 72 hours of the close of the PSPS event. 

(c) Safe Condition.  PG&E, at PG&E's sole cost and expense, shall maintain
the License Area in a good, clean, safe and sanitary condition during Use Days. 

(d) Lawful Use Only.  PG&E shall not use the License Area or permit
anything to be done in or about the License Area during Use Days that will in any way conflict 
with any law, statute, zoning restriction, ordinance or governmental rule or regulation or 
requirement relating to the use or occupancy of the License Area.  During Use Days, PG&E shall 
not allow the License Area to be used for any unlawful or objectionable purpose, nor shall 
PG&E cause, maintain or permit any nuisance in, on or about the License Area.  

(e) Mechanic's Liens.  PG&E shall keep the Property free and clear of all
mechanic's liens arising, or alleged to arise, in connection with any work performed, labor or 
materials supplied or delivered, or similar activities performed by PG&E or at PG&E's request or 
for PG&E's benefit.  If any mechanic's liens are placed on the Property in connection with 
PG&E's use or PG&E's Activities, PG&E shall diligently pursue all necessary actions to remove 
such liens from title, either by payment or by recording a lien release bond in the manner 
specified in California Civil Code Section 8424 or any successor statute.  

Item 9B

CommunityServices
Highlight



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 3 of 4 

6. Notices.  All notices under this License Agreement shall be sent by email to the
addresses set forth in EXHIBIT B.  In addition, LICENSOR will provide PG&E with telephone 
or cellphone numbers of staff in calling order to contact in an emergency as set forth in 
EXHIBIT B.  EXHIBIT B shall be updated as needed to reflect current names and contact 
information. 

7. Indemnity.  PG&E shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless LICENSOR and its
governing body, officers, agents, and employees from and against all claims, losses, actions, 
demands, damages, costs, expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and 
court costs) (collectively, "Claims") which arise from or are connected with PG&E's Activities, 
or the entry on, occupancy or use of, the Property by PG&E or PG&E's Representatives under 
this License Agreement, including, but not limited to, Claims arising out of (i) injury to or death 
of persons, including, but not limited to, employees of LICENSOR or PG&E; (ii) injury to 
property or other interest of LICENSOR and (iii) violation of any applicable federal, state, or 
local laws, statutes, regulations, or ordinances by PG&E or PG&E's Representatives.  The 
indemnification obligations of PG&E under this Section 8 shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of this License Agreement. 

8. Insurance.  PG&E shall at all times during the Term of this License Agreement
self-insure in accordance with EXHIBIT C. 

9. Miscellaneous.

(a) Governing Law.  This License Agreement shall in all respects be
interpreted, enforced, and governed by and under the laws of the State of California. 

(b) Attorneys' Fees.  Should either party bring an action against the other
party, by reason of or alleging the failure of the other party with respect to any or all of its 
obligations hereunder, whether for declaratory or other relief, and including any appeal thereof, 
then the party which prevails in such action shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees and 
expenses related to such action, in addition to all other recovery or relief.   

(c) No Waiver.  Any waiver with respect to any provision of this License
Agreement shall not be effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom it is 
asserted.  The waiver of any provision of this License Agreement by a party shall not be 
construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach or failure of the same term or condition or as a 
waiver of any other provision of this License Agreement.  

(d) Counterparts.  This License Agreement may be executed in identical
counterpart copies, each of which shall be an original, but all of which taken together shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

(e) Authority.  Each party to this License Agreement warrants to the other that
it has the right and authority to enter into and to perform its obligations under this License 
Agreement, without the consent of any third party, and that the person signing below is 
authorized to bind such party. 

Item 9B



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 4 of 4 

(f) Exhibits.  Exhibits A, B, and C attached to this License Agreement are a
part hereof and incorporated herein by this reference. 

(g) Electronic Signatures.  This License Agreement may be executed by
electronic signatures (e.g., using DocuSign or e-SignLive) or signatures transmitted in portable 
document format ("pdf"), and copies of this License Agreement executed and delivered by 
means of electronic or pdf signatures shall have the same force and effect as copies hereof 
executed and delivered with original manually executed signatures.  The parties may rely upon 
electronic and pdf signatures as if such signatures were manually executed originals and agree 
that an electronic or pdf signature page may be introduced into evidence in any proceeding 
arising out of or related to this License Agreement as if it were an original manually executed 
signature page. 

(h) Successors and Assigns.  This License Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of each 
party. 

(i) Entire Agreement.  This License Agreement supersedes all previous oral
and written agreements between and representations by or on behalf of the parties and constitutes 
the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This License 
Agreement may not be amended, except by a written agreement executed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License Agreement as of the 
date set forth below each signature, effective upon the Effective Date first written above. 

"PG&E" 

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, 
a California corporation 

By: 

Name: 

Its: 

Date: 

"LICENSOR" 

City of Colfax 

By: 

Name: 

Its: 

Date: 

Item 9B



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A 

7 N Main Street, Colfax, CA 95713 

Placer County Assessor’s Parcel Number:  006-071-007-000 

Item 9B

68



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit B 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICES 

TO LICENSOR: 

Any notice to Licensor, including the notice to be given pursuant to Section 2 of the 
License Agreement, shall be sent to _________________________ at the following email 
address:  ________________________. 

In addition, in the event of an emergency, PG&E shall contact the following persons in 
the order set forth below: 

________________________ 

________________________ 

________________________ 

TO PG&E: 

Any notice to PG&E, including the notice pursuant to Section 2 of the License Agreement 
shall be sent to Emad Gholani at the following email address: Emad.Gholani@pge.com.  

Item 9B



02898.999 4818-5744-3734.3 Exhibit C 

EXHIBIT C 

Item 9B

70


	Agenda 5-13-20
	Draft Packet - With page Numbers
	6A - Minutes Special Meeting Workshop 4-1-2020
	6B - Regular Meeting 4-22-2020
	6C - SB 1 Funding Project List
	SR SB1 Funding Project List
	SB1 Funding Project List Resolution

	6D - Inland Xerox Contract
	200513 Inland Copier Agreement Staff Report - Updated
	200513 Inland Copier Agreement Resolution
	200513 Inland Copier Agreement

	6E - Kneeland St Underground Contract Award - Koslin
	Kneeland St Underground - SR
	Kneeland St Underground - Resolution
	Attachment - Offsite Work - City Of Colfax

	9A - Stop Sign Placement
	Stop Sign Placement SR
	Colfax Traffic Control PowerPoint

	9B - PSPS Sublet Agreement
	200513 PGE Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement Staff Report
	200513 PGE Community Resource Center Sublet Agreement Resolution
	200513 PGE CRC License Agreement  - Colfax 2





